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MADIGAN: 2011 CONSUMER COMPLAINTS SHOW DEBT COLLECTORS USING ILLEGAL, ABUSIVE TACTICS

Chicago — Attorney General Lisa Madigan today released her list of the top 10 consumer complaints for 2011, revealing that
consumer debt was the upmost concern among Illinoisans.

For the fourth consecutive year, consumer debt complaints in 2011 ranked No. 1 on the Attorney General’s annual top 10 list of
complaints. Of the nearly 5,900 debt-related complaints, more than 1,100 were filed against debt collectors who illegally
threatened and harassed consumers. Madigan said the complaints and calls to her office demonstrate the extent to which
consumers are struggling to pay off debt and are being targeted by abusive, aggressive debt collectors. Abusive debt collection is a
growing problem nationally, Madigan noted, with the Federal Trade Commission reporting in 2010 its top complaint was abusive
debt-collection practices.

As part of today’s announcement, the Attorney General took action against a Skokie-based debt collector, PN Financial Inc., filing
suit in Cook County Circuit Court. Madigan said PN Financial emerged last year as one of the most egregious cases of illegal debt
collection during her tenure as Attorney General.

“As this difficult economy persists, honest, hard-working families are increasingly targets for debt collectors that operate outside
the law,” Madigan said. "Though consumers may be struggling under the weight of debt, they still have the right to be protected
against illegal harassment and fraud.”

Madigan’s lawsuit against PN Financial and owner, Nelson Macwan, of Skokie, alleges numerous violations of state and federal laws
that protect Illinois consumers from off-limits debt collection tactics. Madigan alleged PN Financial acted illegally by:

e Revealing information about debts to people other than the consumer, including employers or family members;

e Fronting as a law firm and intimidating consumers with fake court case numbers on letters sent to consumers to falsely
represent they had been sued for failure to pay a debt;

e Debiting more money from consumers’ bank accounts than consumers authorized, causing some to incur overdraft fees; and

e Accessing consumers’ credit reports without authorization to intimidate them to pay alleged debts.

Additionally, Madigan said in some instances PN Financial attempted to collect debts it was not authorized to collect. As a result,
some consumers paid PN Financial, without realizing they didn’t owe any outstanding balances to the collection company, and
reported losing at least $9,000. PN Financial also contacted other consumers over debts that had already been paid off.

Fifty-two consumers have filed complaints with Madigan’s office against PN Financial. The Chicago Better Business Bureau has
received 82 complaints against the company.

“The BBB has received numerous complaints from consumers who allege a troubling trend in the debt collection industry,” said
Steve Bernas, Better Business Bureau of Chicago president and CEO. “According to these consumers, certain debt collection
companies are attempting to collect debts that these consumers don’t owe or have previously paid off. We support the efforts of
Illinois Attorney General Lisa Madigan to protect consumers. Currently, PN Financial Inc., against which Attorney General Madigan
filed suit today, has the BBB’s lowest rating—an ‘F".”

Madigan’s lawsuit seeks to shut down PN Financial, permanently bar it from debt collection in Illinois, provide restitution to affected
consumers and assess an array of civil penalties.
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In addition to consumer debt, Madigan said other categories that topped her list of complaints involved identity theft and home
repair. In 2011, more than 200,000 consumers contacted Madigan’s office for assistance and a total of 24,516 formal complaints

were filed.

The Top 10 consumer complaints for 2011:

CATEGORY

1. Consumer Debt (mortgage lending, debt collections, credit cards)

2. Identity Theft (fraudulent credit cards and utility accounts, bank fraud)

3. Construction Home Improvement (remodeling, roofs/gutters)

4. Telecommunications (wireless service, local phone service, cable/satellite)
5. Motor Vehicles/Used Auto Sales (as-is sales, financing, warranties)

6. Promotions and Schemes (sweepstakes, pyramid, work-at-home schemes)
7. Mail Order (Internet purchases, catalog ordering, television/radio)

8. Fraud Against Business (consulting, directories/publications)

9. Motor Vehicle/Non-Warranty Repair (collision/body, engines)

10. Utilities (electric, water, natural gas/propane, waste removal)

# OF COMPLAINTS

5,878

3,207

2,263

1,903

1,160

953

944

843

737

574

For more information, visit Madigan’s website, www.illinoisattorneygeneral.gov, or contact her range of hotlines about issues ranging from

home foreclosure to identity theft:

Chicago Consumer Fraud Hotline: 1-800-386-5438
Springfield Consumer Fraud Hotline: 1-800-243-0618
Carbondale Consumer Fraud Hotline: 1-800-243-0607

Spanish Language Hotline: 1-866-310-8398
Identity Theft Hotline: 1-866-999-5630
Homeowner Helpline: 1-866-544-7151
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LISA MADIGAN

ILLINOIS ATTORNEY GENERAL

2011 TOP TEN
Consumer Debt 5,878 5. Motor Vehicles/Used Auto Sales 1,160
Residential Mortgage Lending (2,840) As-Is Sales (673)
Collection Agencies (1,132) Financing (309)
Consumer Installment/Payday/Title Loans (533) Warranty (141)
Credit Cards (471) Other (37)
Credit Counseling & Debt Settlement (454)
Banks/Financial Institutions (309) 6. Promotions & Schemes 953
Credit Bureaus (120) Sweepstakes/Foreign Lottery (228)
Credit Card Protection (19) Counterfeit Check Scams (204)
Work at Home Schemes (127)
Identity Theft 3,207 Nigerian/International Banking Scam (47)
Credit Cards (724) Phishing (23)
Data Breaches (495) Pyramids/Multi Level Marketing (12)
Utilities (471) Other (312)
Bank Fraud, New & Existing (205)
Loans (169) 7. Mail Order 944
Collection Agencies (154) Internet Purchases & Auctions (646)
Government Documents & Benefits (145) Catalog Ordering (235)
Employment (140) Television/Radio (63)
Criminal (12)
Other (132)
Information & Counseling Provided (560) 8. Fraud Against Businesses 843
Consulting/Services (385)
Directories and Publications (211)
Construction/Home Improvement 2,263 Merchant Banking Equipment Leasing (167)
Remodeling (789) Industrial/Business Supplies (80)
Roofs and Gutters (380)
Siding/Windows/Doors (212)
Heating/Ventilation/Air Conditioning (200) 9. Motor Vehicle/Non-Warranty Repair 737
Plumbing/Sewer (144) Collision/Body (313)
New Construction (124) Engines (195)
Other (414) Oil Changes/Tune Ups (106)
Transmissions (83)
Brakes & Mulffler (40)
Telecommunications 1,903
Cable/Satellite (455)
Do Not Call (431) 10. Utilities 574
Wireless Service and Cellular Phones (414) Electric (197)
Local/Phone Service & Repairs (384) Water/Sewer (180)
Internet Service Providers & DSL (159) Natural Gas/Propane (164)
Long Distance Service (42) Waste Removal (33)

Other (18)



LISA MADIGAN

ILLINOIS ATTORNEY GENERAL

Debt Collection FAQs: Know Your Consumer Rights

Can a debt collector contact me any time or place?

No. A debt collector may not contact you at inconvenient times or places, such as before 8 a.m. or after 9
p.m., unless you agree to it. And collectors may not contact you at work if they are told (orally or in
writing) that you are not allowed to get calls there.

How can | stop a debt collector from contacting me?

If a collector contacts you about a debt, you may want to talk to them at least once to see if you can
resolve the matter—even if you don't think you owe the debt, can’t repay it immediately, or think the
collector is contacting you by mistake. If after contacting the debt collector you decide that you don’t want
the collector to contact you again, tell the collector—in writing—to stop contacting you. Make a copy of
your letter, send the original by certified mail, and pay for a “return receipt” so you'll be able to document
what the collector received.

After receiving your letter, the collector may not contact you again, with two exceptions: a collector can
contact you to tell you there will be no further contact or to let you know that the collector or creditor
intends to take a specific action, like filing a lawsuit. Sending such a letter to a debt collector you owe
money to should stop the contact, but it does not erase the debt. The creditor or the debt collector can still
sue you to collect the debt.

Can a debt collector contact anyone else about my debt?

If an attorney is representing you about the debt, the debt collector must contact the attorney, rather than
you. If you don’t have an attorney, a collector may contact other people, but only to find out your address,
your home phone number, and where you work. Collectors usually are prohibited from contacting third
parties more than once. Other than to obtain this location information about you, a debt collector generally
is not permitted to discuss your debt with anyone other than you, your spouse, or your attorney.

What does the debt collector have to tell me about the debt?

Every collector must send you a written “validation notice” telling you how much money you owe within
five days after they first contact you. This notice also must include the name of the creditor to whom you
owe the money, and how to proceed if you don't think you owe the money.

Can a debt collector keep contacting me if I don’t think | owe any money?

If you send a debt collector a letter stating that you don’t owe any or all of the money, or asking for
verification of the debt, that collector must stop contacting you. You must send your letter within 30 days
after you receive the validation notice. However, a collector can begin contacting you again after sending
you written verification of the debt, such as a copy of a bill.



What practices are off limits for debt collectors?
Harassment. Debt collectors may not harass, oppress, or abuse you or any third parties they contact. For
example, they may not:

e use threats of violence or harm;

e publish a list of names of people who refuse to pay their debts (but they can give this information

to credit reporting companies);
e use obscene or profane language; or
e repeatedly use the phone to annoy someone.

False statements. Debt collectors may not lie when they are trying to collect a debt. For example, they
may not:

o falsely claim that they are attorneys or government representatives;

o falsely claim that you have committed a crime;

o falsely represent that they operate or work for a credit reporting company;

e misrepresent the amount you owe;

¢ indicate that papers they send to you are legal forms if they aren’t; or

e indicate that papers they send to you aren'’t legal forms if they are.

Debt collectors also are prohibited from saying that:
e you will be arrested if you don’t pay your debt;

o they'll seize, garnish, attach, or sell your property or wages unless they are permitted by law to
take the action and intend to do so; or

e legal action will be taken against you, if doing so would be illegal or if they don't intend to take the
action.

Debt collectors may not:
e give false credit information about you to anyone, including a credit reporting company;
e send you anything that looks like an official document from a court or government agency if it
isn't; or
e use a false company name.

Unfair practices. Debt collectors may not engage in unfair practices when they try to collect a debt. For
example, they may not:

e deposit a post-dated check early;

e take or threaten to take your property unless it can be done legally; or

e contact you by postcard.

How can | file a complaint or find out more about debt collection?

To file a complaint or obtain more information about your rights concerning debt collection practices and
other consumer issues, please call the Attorney General’s office at 1-800-386-5438 (TTY: 1-800-964-
3013) or visit www.lllinoisAttorneyGeneral.gov.

Adapted from the Federal Trade Commission’s “Debt Collection FAQs: A Guide for Consumers.”
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SUMMONS ALIAS - SUMMONS

(2/28/11) CCG NOO1

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS .
COUNTY DEPARTMENT, CHANCERY DIVISION DIVISION

See attached service list.

PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

(Name all parties)

P.N. FINANCIAL, INC., and NELSON MACWAN

(¢) SUMMONS (O)ALIAS SUMMONS
To cach Defendant:

YOU ARE SUMMONED and required to file an answer to the complaint in this case, a copy of which is
hereto attached, or otherwise file yvour appearance, and pay the required fee, in the Office of the Clerk of this Court at the
following location: :

® Richard J. Daley Center, 50 W. Washington, Room 802 , Chicago, [llinois 60602
O District 2 - Skokie O District 3 - Rolling Meadows O District 4 - Maywood
5600 Old Orchard Rd. 2121 Euclid 1500 Maybrook Ave.
Skokie, 1L 60077 Rolling Meadows, IL. 60008 Maywood, 1L, 60153
O District 5- Bridgeview (O District 6 - Markham Q child Supbort
10220 S. 760th Ave. 16501 S. Kedzie Pkwy. 28 North Clark St., Room 200
Bridgeview, IL 60455 Markham, IL 60428 Chicago, Illinois 60602

You must file within 30 days after service of this Summons, not counting the day of service.
IF YOU FAIL TO DO SO, A JUDGMENT BY DEFAULT MAY BE ENTERED AGAINST YOU FOR THE RELIEF
REQUESTED IN THE COMPLAINT.

To the officer:

This Summons must be returned by the officer or other person to whom it was given for service, with endorsement
of service and fees, if any, immediately after service. 1f service cannot be made, this Summans shall be returned so endorsed.
This Summons may not be served later than 30 days after its date.

Atty. No.: 99000

WITNESS, -
Name: Junko Minami, Assistant Attorney General JAN 11 Tﬂm

Atty. for: Plaintiff wﬁ&(}i{}:ﬁ Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ
Address: 100 West Randolph, 12th Floor Clerk of Court
weiseate/7in. Chicago, IL 60601
City/State/Zip: J Date of service: ,
Telephone: 312-814-7130 (To be inserted by officer on copy left with defendant

or other person)

Service by Facsimile Transmission will be accepted at:

(Area Code)  (Facsimile Telephone Number)

DOROTHY BROWN, CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS




SERVICE LIST

Please serve:

Nelson Macwan, Individually and
as President of P.N. Financial, Inc.
7330 North Cicero Avenue

Suite 219 or 221

Lincolnwood, Hlinois

or

8117 North Kenneth Avenue
Skokie, Illinois 60076

PN Financial, Inc.

c/o Nelson Macwan, President
or

Nina Youkhaana, Secretary
7330 North Cicero Avenue, Suite 219 or 221
Lincolnwood, Illinois 60712
or '

Erik Swanson, Agent

1701 Golf road

Tower Two, Suite 100
Rolling Meadows, IL 60008




Attorney No. 99000

IN THE CIRCUIT COURT OF COOK COUNTY, ILLINOIS |
COUNTY DEPARTMENT-CHANCERY DIVISION

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,
Plaintiff,
C Bé 0 929

V.

P.N. FINANCIAL INC., and NELSON MACWAN,
individually and as President of P.N. FINANCIAL, INC.

Defendants.

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTIVE AND OTHER RELIEF

NOW COMES the Plaintiff, THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by LISA
MADIGAN, Attorney General of the State of Illinois, and brings this action for injunctive and
other relief against P.N. FINANCIAL INC., an Illinois corporation, and NELSON MACWAN,
ipdividually and as President of P.N. FINANCIAL, INC. for violationsvof the Illinois Consumer

Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, the Illinois Collection Agency Act, and the federal

Fair Credit Reporting Act.

PUBLIC INTEREST

1. The Illinois Attorney General believes this action to be in t &
citizens of the State of Illinois and brings this lawsuit pursuant to the Illinois Consumer Fraud
and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS 505/7(a).

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This action is brought for and on behalf of the PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF
ILLINOIS, by LISA MADIGAN, ATTORNEY GENERAL OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS,

pursuant to the provisions of the Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act




(“Consumer Fraud Act”), 815 ILCS 505/1 et seq., the Illinois Collection Agency Act,
(“Collection Agency Act”), 225 ILCS 425/1 et seq.. the Fair Credit Reporting Act (f‘FCRA”), 15
U.S.C. 1681 ef seq., and her common law authority as Attorney General to represent the People
of the State of Illinois.
3. Venue for this action properly lies in Cook County, I1linois, pursuant to 'Sections 2-101
and 2-102(a) of the Illinois Code of Civil Procedure, 735 ILCS 5/2-101, 735 ILCS 5/2-102(a), in
that Cook County is the county of residence of Defendant.

PARTIES
4. Plaintiff, THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, by LISA MADIGAN, the
Attorney General of the State of Illinois is authorized to enforce the Consumer Fraud Act, 815
ILCS 505/1 et seq.
5. Defendant P.N. FINANCIAL INC. is an Iilinois corporatidn with its principal place of
business at 8117 North Kenneth Avenﬁe, Skokie, Cook County, Illinois 60076.
6. Defendant NELSON MACWAN resides in Skokie, Illinois and is being sued
individually and as the sole owner of P.N. FINANCIAL INC. MACWAN is the President of
P.N. FINANCIAL INC. MACWAN, at all times material to this Complaint, formulated,
direqted, controlled, had the authority to control, and participated in the acts and practices of
Defendant P.N. FINANCIAL INC., including the acts or practices set forth in this Complaint.
7. Defendants P.N. FINANCIAL INC. and NELSON MACWAN will be collectively
‘referred to as “Defendants” throughout this Complaint.
8. For purposes of this Complaint for Injunctive and Other Relief, any references to the

acts and practices of the Defendants shall mean that such acts and practices are by and through




the acts of P.N. FINANCIAL INC.’s and NELSON MACWAN’s members, OWNers, directors,
employees, salespersons, representatives and/or other agents.

TRADE AND COMMERCE

9. Section 1(f) of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/1(f), defines “trade” and

“commerce” as follows:

The terms ‘trade’ and ‘commerce’ mean the advertising, offering for sale, sale, or
distribution of any services and any property, tangible or intangible, real,
personal, or mixed, and any other article, commodity, or thing of value wherever
situated, and shall include any trade or commerce directly or indirectly affecting
the people of this State. '

10. Defendants were at all times relevant hereto engaged in trade and commerce in the
- State of Illinois by offering debt collection services in the State of Illinois.

DEFENDANTS’ BUSINESS PRACTICES

11. As described below, in the course 6f trade or commerce in the State of Illinois,
Defendants have engaged in acts or practices that violate Illinois law. Defendants’ conduct is
ongoing and has the potential to impact any.Illinois consumers. Therefore, any examples
provided of specific consumer experiences are simply illustrations ar_ld should not be construed
as the only instance in which an Illinois consumer was harmed or could pqtentially be harmed by
Defendants.

12. Since at least April 7, 2006 and continuing to date, Defendants have provided debt

management and collection services.

13. P.N. FINANCIAL is a debt collection company comprised of approximately 13
employees.
14. Defendants engage in a variety of abusive practices in its contacts with consumers.

\




15. As the sole owner, NELSON MACWAN is responsible for the day-to-day operations
and for implementing any training and monitoring programs of P.N. Financial’s representatives.

Revealing Information About aDebttoa Third Party V

16. Federal and Illinois collection laws prohibit Defendants from revealing 1o third parties
that the telephone calls are regarding debts of others except to obtain location information.

17. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants
communicated with third parties for purposes other ;than acquiring location information about a
consumer.

18.

Impersonating an Attorney and Failure to Reveal True Identity As a Debt Collector

19. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants falsely
represenfed or implied that their communication is from an attorney and/or used a name other
than the true name of the debt collector's business, company, of organization.

20. Defendants left voice messages for consumers stating that their accounts were overdue
and that they must call attorney, Thomas Mason, at a 1-866 telephone number.

21. When the 1-866 telephone number was dialed, a representative answered the call, “law
firm,” when, in fact, the 1-866 telephone number belonged to Defendants, a collection agency.
22. No attorney by the name of Thomas Mason is employed at P.N. Financial‘.

23. Defendants misrepresented that the debt collector is an attorney and that the
communication is from an attorney.

24, Defendants failed to use its true name in attempting to collect on debts.

25. Under federal and Illinois collection laws, Defendants are prohibited from using a name

other than the true name of the debt collector’s business, company, Or organization. .




Threats About False Lawsuits

26. 1In numerous instances, Defendants threatened or implied that they will initiate lawsuits

if consumers fail to pay them.

27. In many of the instances that Defendants make such threats, Defendants do not initiate

legal action against consumers who fail to pay, and Defendants do not have the duthority or

intent to do so.

28. Defendants represented to consumers’ family members that there were pending

lawsuits against the consumers when, in fact, it was not true.

29. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants

represented in letters to consumers that judgments were pending when, in fact, it was not true. .

30. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants

represented to consumers that those letters were from an attorney, when, in fact, it was not true.

31. Defendants sent debt collection letters falsely stating that a judgment is pending that

contained falsified docket numbers and a judgment amount to consumers.

32. The outside of the envelope, in which these collection letters were sent also stated,

«JUDGMENT PENDING,” and included a false docket number. (Ex. A).

33. One debt collection letter stated:
Our intentions are to seek whatever legal remedies are available. Additionally, you are
cautioned that unless this balance is paid, our office will execute all interest, legal fees,
and/or penalties allowable under the terms of the original contract...Since you have not
made payment we have turned your account over to our attorneys and instructed them to
commence suit without further delay. However, there is still time to avoid a judgment.
To avoid the additional burden of legal proceedings, you must resolve this matter by
January 20, 2010. This will be your final opportunity to stop lien, levy, and/or
garnishments and the expense of court proceedings. Please be advised after January 20,

7010 the settlement offer will be null and void, and the above judgment will be due in
full.

(Ex. B).




34, The letters are signed by “John T. Sullivan, PC, Attorney at Law,” or “Robert S.
Weinberg, PC, Attorney at Law” on P.N. Financial letterhead.

35. No attorneys by the names of John T. Sullivan or Robert S. Weinberg are employed by
PN. FINANCIAL. |

False Threats of Seizure, Garnishment, Attachment, or Sale of Property or Wages

36. In numerous instances, Defendants contact consumers and claim to be attorneys or
claim to work for attorneys. Defendants are not a law firm and the collectors are not attorneys.
Defendants also do not work with attorneys.

37. In numerous instances, Defendants threatened or implied that they will seize or attach
consumers’ properties, garnish consumers’ wéges, or have consumers arresfed if they fail to pay
Defendants.

38. In many of the instances when Defendants make such threats, Defendants do not have
the authority or intent to attach consumers’ properties, to garnish consumers’ wages, or to have
consumers arrested if they fail to pay Defendants.

Harassing Consumers About a Debt at Their Workplace and Revealing Information About the

Debt to Co-Workers

39. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants
communicated with consumers at times or piaces that Defendants knew or should have known to
Be inconvenient to the consumers, including their places of employment without prior consent
from the consumer as required by law.

40. Defendants were not permitted by law or court order to contact the consumers’
employers and they were not making contact solely to confirm the consumers’ employment

status.




41. Defendants called consumers at their place of employment even though they knew or
had reason to know that the employers prohibited receiving such communication.
42. Defendants called and harassed consumers about payment on debts at their workplace,

even after the consumers’ requests that Defendants stop calling.

43. Defendants discussed the consumer’s debt with co-workers at the consumers’
workplace.
44, Consumers did not receive any written notice of Defendants’ intention to communicate

with their employers.

Using Abusive or Profane Language

45. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants engaged
in conduct the natural consequence of which is to harass, oppress, or abuse a berson, including
that Defendants used obscene or profane language, or language the natural consequence of which
is to abuse the hearer.. |
46. During telephone calls, Defendaﬁts frequently used abusive or profane language to
intimidate and induce consumers into paying the debt in question.

47. . Defendénts have admitted in ‘correspondence with the Illinois Attorney General’s office
that their own debt collectors had made threatening calls to consumers. (EX. C).

Unauthorized Withdrawal of Money

48. Defendants demanded that some consumers pay electronically through their bank
accounts.
49. Because Defendants informed the consumers that they would only accept electronic

payment, consumers provided Defendants with their bank account numbers to pay their debts.




50. However, Defendants withdrew money in amounts exceeding what was agreed ﬁpon
with the consumer.

51. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants
accepted a check or other payment instrument postdated by more than five days wi;hout ~
notifying the consumers in writing of their intent to deposit such check or instrument not more
than ten nor less than three business days prior to such deposit.

52. Defendants withdrew money before the agreed upon date with the consumer.

53. Some consumers were charged overdraft fees from their banks, due to the unauthorized
withdrawals from Defendants. |

Failure to Send First Notice of Debt

54, On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts and after the} initial
communication with Defendants, consumers stated that they never received the requisite first
written notice of debt containing: (1) the amount of debt, (2) the name of creditor to whom debt
owed, (3) a statement that unless consumer, within 30 days aﬁer receipt of notice, disputes the
validity of the debt, or any portion, the debt will be assumed to be valid, (4) a statement that if
the consumer notifies the collector in writing within the 30 day period that the debt, or any
portion, is disputed, the collector will obtain verification of debt or a copy of judgment against
consumer, and a copy will be mailed to consumer, and (5) a statement that, upon consumer’s
written request within 30 days, the collector will provide the consumer with the name and
address of original creditor, if different from the current creditor.

55. Debit collectors are required by both federal and Illinois collection laws to send this first

written notice of debt within five days of the initial communication with a consumer.




Misrepresenting the Nature of the Debt

56. On numerous occasions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants falsely
represent the character of the debt by falsely stating that P.N. FINANCIAL is the original
cfeditgr of the debt on their collection letters.

57. Federal and Illinois collection laws prohibit Defendants from misrepresenting that they ’
are the original creditor of debts.

Disclosure of Social Security Numbers

58. Defendants included full social security numbers of individuals in the debt collection

letters sent to consumers.

Unauthorized Collection of Debts

59. Defendants have collected payments on debts that they had no authority to collect upon.
60. On numerous occaéions, in connection with the collection of debts, Defendants falsely
represent the character, amounf or legal status of the debt by attempting to collect and collecting
on already settled debt.

61. Defendants call consumers to offer a settlement on their alleged debt.

62. Defendants inform the consumers that they are a collection agency and that they are

willing to work with the consumer on a payment plan for the debt.

63. Some consumers agree to pay Defendants with the belief that they are paying their
debts.
64. However, the consumers’ payments do not settle their debts because Defendants hadno

authority to collect these accounts.

65. Subsequently, consumers received collection calls from other collection agencies to

collect on the same debt.




66. One of these collection agencies provided proof to the Illinois Attorney Geﬁeral’s
Office that it, and not Defendants, has authority to collect upon some of these debts.

67. Other creditors informed consumers that Defendants have no authority to collect on
these debts.

68. Defendants refused to provide validation on any of the debts that they allegedly have
authority to collect upon to the consumers or to the Illinois Attorney General’s Office.

69. When consumers checked their credit report, there was no indication that their
payments to Defendants had settled any of the debts for which Defendants allegedly had
authority to collect.

Abusing Access to Credit Reports

70. Upon information and belief, Defendants access consumers’ credit reports to collect on
debts without authorization.

71. Federal credit reporting laws prohibit Defendants from using or obtaining consumer
credit information for any purpose other than a permissible purpose.

72. Defendants are allowed to obtain and use consumer credit reports for legitimate.
collections of debt.

73. However, Defendanté obtained and uséd consumers’ credit reports for the unauthorized
collection of debt, wﬁich is an impermissible purpose under federal law.

74. Defendants accessed consumers’ credit reports so that they can use tﬁe information to
intimidate consumers to pay.

75. Defendants called consumers in an attempt to colleét on debts, and indicated to

consumers that they know their bank account numbers and old addresses.

10




76. Defendants thereby led consumers to believe that they had authority to collect on the
debts.

Consumer Illustrations

71. To date, the Illinois Attorney General’s Office has received 52 consumer complaints. -
The following allegations in Paragraphs 78 through 124 are pled as examples of Defendants’
unlawful bpsiness practices and are not meant to be exhaustive. The unlawful conduct of
Defendants is ongoing and continuous. Plaintiff reserves tﬁe right to prove that consumers other
than those who have complained to the Office of the Attorney General or the Better Business
Bureau have been injured as a result of Defendants’ unlawful business practices. -

A. Consumer Melissa Anello

78. Melissa Anello had been in contact with Defendants concei'ning her own debt.

79. However, on October 25, 2010, Melissa ”Anell_o received a telephone voicemail from
Jennifer Diaz at Aitomey, Tom Mason’s office for Renee Castillo, a debtor not known to her.
80. Jennifer Diaz explained in the voicemail that the call was about a “civil matter”” and that
Renee Castillo’s “remaining payment did not go through.”

81. Jennifer Diaz further stated in the voicemail that for her to “stop action” she needs
Renee Castillo to call her at 866-588-2440. Jennifer Diaz concluded the voicemail stating, “If
I’'m in court, ask for the attorney, Tom Mason.”

82. On October 26, 2010, the next day, Ms. Anello received another telephone voicemail
for Renee Castillo from Jennifer at Attorney Tom Mason’s office.

83. This time, Jennifer asked that the voicemail, regarding a civil matter, be forwarded to

Mr. Castillo and that he contact her “in order to stop action.”




84, Jennifer concluded the voicemail with a docket number, 235359-PX, and telephone
number, 866-588-2440.
85. On October 29, 2010, Ms. Anello received a third telephone voicemail for Renee

Castillo from Jennifer Diaz at Attorney Tom Mason’s office.

86. Jennifer Diaz stated in the voicemail that the telephoné call concerned “a civil matter
for theft by deception.”
87. Jennifer Diaz further stated that “your final payment did not go through again. I need

to hear from you right away to stop action, phone number 866-588-2440. Ask for Jennifer. If
I’'m in court, I do have a couple of court cases this morning; ask for the Attorney Tom Mason.”
88. Investigation into this telephone call revealed that the 1-866 telephone number
belonged to Defendants and not to a law firm.

89. No attorneys by the names of Thomas Mason or Jennifer Diaz are employed at P.N.

Financial.

B. Consumer Michael Medeiros

90. In January 2010, Michael Medeiros received a debt collection letter from Defendants.
91. The debt collection letter stated that it was a “FINAL NOTICE OF JUDGMENT” and
included a docket number and a judgment amount of $992.43. (Ex. B).

92. The debt collection letter stated:

Our intentions are to seek whatever legal remedies are available. Additionally, you are
cautioned that unless this balance is paid, our office will execute all interest, legal fees,
and/or penalties allowable under the terms of the original contract...Since you have not
made payment we have turned your account over to our attorneys and instructed them to
commence suit without further delay. However, there is still time to avoid a judgment.
To avoid the additional burden of legal proceedings, you must resolve this matter by
January 20, 2010. This will be your final opportunity to stop lien, levy, and/or
garnishments and the expense of court proceedings. Please be advised after January 20,
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2010 the settlement offer will be null and void, and the above judgment will be due in
full.

(Ex. B).

93. The letter is signed by “John T. Sullivan, PC, Attorney at Law.”

94. No attorney by thé name of John T. Sullivan is employed by P.N. Financial.

95. - Defendants falsely represented the legal status of the debts and had not taken any legal
action against the consumers.

C. Consumer Mary Kendall

96. In December 2009, Mary Kendall received a telephone voicemail at her workplace
from “Mike,” a representative of Defendants.

97. | In the voicemail, “Mike” falsely idéntiﬁed himself as a lawyer and threatened to sue
Ms. Kendall over her débf and that he would send her a summons.
98. Defendants also called the customer service department at Ms. Kendall’s workplace
and disclosed that the call was about Ms. Kendall’s debt.
99. Defendants yelled at Ms. Kendall and her co-workeré and called them derogatory
names. |
100. ' Both Ms. Kendall and her employer told P.N. Financial to stop calling the workplace
but the calls continuea.
101. After Ms. Kendall filed a complaint with the Illinois Attorney General’s office, P.N.
Financial finally stopped calling her workplace.

D. Consumer Mindy Tran

102. On March 27, 2010, Mindy Tran received a debt collection letter from Defendants.
103. This was the first collection letter from Defendants but the letter was entitled, “FINAL

NOTICE,” from “John Powers™ at P.N. Financial & Associates.
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104. Ms. Tran contacted John Powers at P N. FINANCIAL to pay the debt on a U.S: Bank

account.

105. On April 28, 2010, Ms. Tran paid Defendants two checks of $200.00 each, for a total of
$400.00.

106. On June 9, 2010, Ms. Tran received a “Letter of Release” from Legal Asset Recovery
Group, Inc., an entirely different collection company.

107. After reading the “Letter of Release,” Ms. Tran realized that she had already paid
$400.00 to settle the same U.S. Bank account with Legal Asset Recovery Group, Inc.

108. Even though Ms. Tran had paid Defendants on April 28,2010, Ms. Tran received
another collection letter from Defendants for the same U.S. Bank account, demanding another
payment of $217. 99, on July 29, 2010.

109. Ms. Tran called Defendants to inform them that she had already settled the account
with them, and also sent them a copy of the Letter of Release from Legal Asset Recovery Group,
Inc.

110. Defendants responded that Ms. Tran was obllgated to further pay on the account
because “John Powers” was a rogue employee who had quit the company and had taken all of his

files and payments with him.

111, Defendants also threatened Ms. Tran that they would sue her if she did not make a
payment.

112. Ms. Tran received another collection letter from Defendants on February 9, 201 1.

1_13. Thereafter, Ms. Tran filed a consumer 4complaint against Defendants with the Office of

the Attorney General.




114.  Only after Ms. Tran filed a consumer complaint, Defendants sent a letter to the Office
of the Attorney General, stating that the debt collection account for Ms. Tran was closed and that
Defendants had received Ms. Tran’s Letter of Release.

E. Consumer Christine Cruz

115. On June 27, 2011, Christine Cruz receiyed a voicemail ﬁfom “Chris Adams” that she
had a case in their office and that if she did not respond then action would be taken the next day.
116. Ms. Cruz called the telephone number left in the voicemail and talked to “Tom” who
informed her that she owed $3,500 on a credit card account that she had opened between 2008
and 2009 with Orchard bank.

117. Ms. Cruz informed Defenéants that she had paid all of her credit cards and asked them
to validate the debt.

118. Defendants told Ms. Cruz thatlthe only v_alidation they needed to provide was the
collection letter that they had sent to her. |

119. Ms. Cruz had not received any collection letters.

120. Defendants threatened Ms. Cruz that they would get her money and that they knew Ms.
' Cruz’é old addresses and bank account numbers.

121. Ms. Cruz immediately called her bank to place a fraud alert.

122. Ms. Cruz’s bank informed her that there had been attempts to withdraw $125 and
another $1,500, which the bank had declined.

123. For the next two weeks, Defendants harassed Ms. Cruz at her place of employment.

124. Defendants called Ms. Cruz’s place of employment and revealed to her co-worker that

she owed a debt.




125.

126.

127:

128.

APPLICABLE STATUTES

Section 2 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/2, provides:

Unfair methods of competition and unfair or deceptive acts or practices, including but not
limited to the use or employment of any deception, fraud, false pretense, false promise,
misrepresentation or the concealment, suppression or omission of any material fact, with
intent that others rely upon the concealment, suppression or omission of such material
fact, or the use or employment of any practice described in section 2 of the “Uniform
Deceptive Trade Practices Act”, approved August 5, 1965, in the conduct of any trade or
commerce are hereby declared unlawful whether any person has in fact been misled,
deceived or damaged thereby. '

Section 21 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/21, provides:

§ 21. No person may attempt to collect an obligation by communicating in any way with
an employer with regard to the obligation owing by one of his employees unless there has
been a default of the payment of the obligation for at least 30 days and at least 5 days
prior notice of the intention to communicate with the employer has been given to the
employee. Any person violating this Section commits an unlawful practice within the
meaning of this Act and, in addition, is liable in a civil action for damages resulting to the '
employee about whom such a communication is wrongfully made.

Section 2RR of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/2RR, provides:

Use of Social Security numbers. (a) Except as otherwise provided in this Section, a
person may not do any of the following:

- (5) Print an individual's social security number on any materials that are mailed to
the individual, unless State or federal law requires the social security number to
be on the document to be mailed. Notwithstanding any provision in this Section to
the contrary, social security numbers may be included in applications and forms
sent by mail, including documents sent as part of an application or enrollment
process or to establish, amend, or terminate an account, contract, or policy or to
confirm the accuracy of the social security number. A social security number that
may permissibly be mailed under this Section may not be printed, in whole or in
part, on a postcard or other mailer that does not require an envelope or be visible
on an envelope or visible without the envelope having been opened.

Section 9 of the Iilinois Collection Agency Act, 225 ILCS 425/9, provides:

(12) Threatening the seizure, attachment or sale of a debtor's property where such action
can only be taken pursuant to court order without disclosing that prior court proceedings
are required.
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129.

(14) Initiating or threatening to initiate communication with a debtor's employer unless
there has been a default of the payment of the obligation for at least 30 days and at least 5
days prior written notice, to the last known address of the debtor, of the intention to
communicate with the employer has been given to the employee, except as expressly
permitted by law or court order.

(16) Using profane, obscene or abusive language in communicating with a debtor, his or
her family or others.

(17) Disclosing or threatening to disclose information relating to a debtor's indebtedness
to any other person except where such other person has a legitimate business need for the
information or except where such disclosure is regulated by law.

(20) Attempting or threatening to enforce a right or remedy with knowledge or reason to
know that the right or remedy does not exist.

(21) Failing to disclose to the debtor or his or her family the corporate, partnership or
proprietary name, or other trade or business name, under which the debt collector is
engaging in debt collections and which he or she is legally authorized to use.

(22) Using any form of communication which simulates legal or judicial process or
which gives the appearance of being authorized, issued or approved by a governmental
agency or official or by an attorney at law when it is not. .

(25) Failing to disclose, at the time of making any demand for payment, the name of the
person to whom the claim is owed and at the request of the debtor, the address where
payment is to be made and the address of the person to whom the claim is owed.

(28) Representing that the debt collector is an attorney at law or an agent for an attorney
if he is not.

(31) Engaging in dishonorable, unethical, or unprofessional conduct of a character likely
to deceive, defraud, or harm the public. ' )

Section 9.1 of the Illinois Collection Agency Act, 225 ILCS 425/9.1, provides:

§ 9.1. Communication with persons other than debtor. Any debt collector or collection
agency communicating with any person other than the debtor for the purpose of acquiring
location information about the debtor shall:

(1) identify himself or herself, state that he or she is confirming or correcting
location information concerning the consumer, and, only if expressly requested,
identify his or her employer;

(2) not state that the consumer owes any debt;

(3) not communicate with any person more than once unless requested to do so by
the person or unless the debt collector or collection agency reasonably believes




that the earlier response of the person is erroneous or incomplete and that the
person now has correct or complete location information;

130.  Section 9.2 of the Illinois Collection Agency Act, 225 ILCS 425/9.2, provides:
§9.2. Communication in connection with debt collection.

(a) Without the prior consent of the debtor given directly to the debt collector or
collection agency or the express permission of a court of competent jurisdiction, a debt
collector or collection agency may not communicate with a debtor in connection with the
collection of any debt in any of the following circumstances: '

(3) At the debtor's place of employment, if the debt collector or collection agency
knows or has reason to know that the debtor's employer prohibits the debtor from
receiving such communication. '

(b) Except as provided in Section 9.1 of this Act, without the prior consent of the debtor
given directly to the debt collector or collection agency or the express permission of a
court of competent jurisdiction or as reasonably necessary to effectuate a post judgment
judicial remedy, a debt collector or collection agency may not communicate, in
connection with the collection of any debt, with any person other than the debtor, the
debtor's attorney, a consumer reporting agency if otherwise permitted by law, the
creditor, the attorney of the creditor, or the attorney of the collection agency.

131.  Section 2 of the Illinois Collection Agency Act, 225 ILCS 425/2, provides:

“Debt collection” means any act or practice in connection with the collection of
consumer debts.

“Debt collector”, “collection agency”, or “agency” means any person who, in the
ordinary course of business, regularly, on behalf of himself or herself or others,
engages in debt collection. :

132.  Section 9.3 of the Illinois Collection Agency Act, 225 ILCS 425/9.3, provides:

§ 9.3. Validation of debts.

(a) Within 5 days after the initial communication with a debtor in connection with
the collection of any debt, a debt collector or collection agency shall, unless the
following information is contained in the initial communication or the debtor has
paid the debt, send the debtor a written notice with each of the following
disclosures:

(1) The amount of the debt.
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(2) The name of the creditor to whom the debt is owed. :
(3) That, unless the debtor, within 30 days after receipt of the notice,

disputes the validity of the debt, or any portion thereof, the debt will be
assumed to be valid by the debt collector or collection agency.

(4) That, if the debtor notifies the debt collector or collection agency in
writing within the 30-day period that the debt, or any portion thereof, is
disputed, the debt collector or collection agency will obtain verification of
the debt or a copy of a judgment against the debtor and a copy of the
verification or judgment will be mailed to the debtor by the debt collector
or collection agency. '

(5) That upon the debtor's written request within the 30-day period, the
debt collector or collection agency will provide the debtor with the name
and address of the original creditor, if different from the current creditor.
If the disclosures required under this subsection (a) are placed on the back
of the notice, the front of the notice shall contain a statement notifying
debtors of that fact. :

133.  Section 1681b(f) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §1681b(f), provides:
A person shall not use or obtain a consumer report for any purpose unless--

(1) the consumer report is obtained for a purpose for which the consumer report is
authorized to be furnished under this section...

COUNT1
VIOLATIONS OF THE CONSUMER FRAUD ACT

134. The People reallgge and incorporate by reference the allegations in Paragraphs 1 to 135.
135. While engaged in trade or commerce, Defendants have committed unfair and/or
deceptive acts or practices declared unlawful under Section 2 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815
| ILCS 505/2 et seq., by:
a. falsely representing itself as an attorney in an attempt to collect consumers debts;
b. sending collection letters to consumers that falsified the Jegal status of the debts ;
c. falsely representing that Defendant will file lawsuits against cOnsumers in an
attempt to collect consumer debt;

d. making unauthorized electronic charges of payments ahead of the date agreed

L
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136.

137.

upon or in amounts over the agreed upon settlement with consumers;

e. unfairly harassing consumers about debts at their workplace in an attempt to

collect consumer debt;

f. unfairly harassing consumers’ co-workers or supervisors at their workplace in an

attempt to collect consumer debt;

g. disclosing to consumers’ co-workers, SUpervisors, and other third parties that the

consumers owe debt in an attempt to collect debt;

h. féiling to send first notice collection letters within five days of initial contact with

consumers about a debt;

i réfusing to validate debts upon request from consumers;

j.  knowingly collecting on unauthorized debts; and

k. using and obtaining consumers’ credit reports for an impermissible purpose.
Defendants have engaged in the conduct of trade or commerce, which constitutes unfair
and deceptive acts or practices declared unlawful ‘under Section 21 of the Consumer
Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS 505/21, in that, Defendants
attempted to collect on a debt by communicating with consumers’ employers with regard
to debts owed by the consumers, and no notice of the intention to communicate with the
employers had been given to the consumers.
Defendants have engaged in the conduct of trade or commerce, which constitutes anair
and deceptive acts or practices declared untawful under Section 2RR Qf the Consumer

Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS 505/2RR, in that, Defendants

printed individuals’ social security numbers on materials that were mailed to the




138.

139.

individuals, and State law did not require the social security numbers to be on the

document to be mailed.

STATUTORY REMEDIES—COUNT |

Section 7 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/7, provides:

Whenever the Attorney General has reason to believe that any person is using, has used,
or is about to use any method, act or practice declared by the Act to be unlawful, and that
proceedings would be in the public interest, he may bring an action in the name of the
State against such person to restrain by preliminary or permanent injunction the use of
such method, act or practice. The Court, in its discretion, may exercise all powers
necessary, including but not limited to: injunction, revocation, forfeiture or suspension of
any license, charter, franchise, certificate or other evidence of authority of any person to
do business in this State; appointment of a receiver; dissolution of domestic corporations
or association suspension or termination of the right of foreign corporations or

associations to do business 1n this State; and restitution.

In addition to the remedies provided herein, the Attorney General may request and this
Court may impose a civil penalty in a sum not to exceed $50,000 against any person
found by the Court to have engaged in any method, act or practice declared unlawful

under this Act. In the event the court finds the method, act or practice to have been

entered into with intent to defraud, the court has the authority to impose a civil penalty in
a sum not to exceed $50,000 per violation. :

Section 10 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/10, provides that “[i]n any action
brought under the provisions of this Act, the Attorney General is entitled to recover costs
for the use of this State.”

PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff prays that this Honorable Court enter an Order:

A.

finding that the Defendants have violated Sections 2, 2I, and JRR of the Consumer Fraud
Act, 815 ILCS 505/1, by, but not limited to, the unlawful acts and practices alleged
herein; |

permanently enjoining the Defendants from engaging in the deceptive and unfair acts and

practices alleged herein;
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140.

141.

declaring that all contracts entered into between the Defendants and Illinois consumers by
the use of methods and practices are unlawful and rescinded and requiring that full

restitution be made to said consumers;

'assessing a civil penalty of $50,000 if the Court finds the Defendants have engaged in

methods, acts or practlces declared unlawful by the Act without the intent to defraud, if
the Court finds Defendants have engaged i in methods acts or practices declared unlawful
by the Act with the intent to defraud, then assessing a statutory civil penalty of $50,000,
all as provided iﬁ Section 7 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/7,
assessing an additional civil penalty in the amount of $10,000 per violation of the
Consumer Fraud and Deéeptive Business Practices Act found by the Court to have been
committed by the Defendants against a person 65 years of age and older as provided in
Section 7(c) of the Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS
505/7(c); |
requiring the Defendants to pay all costs for the prosecution and iﬁvéstigation of this
action, as provided by Section 10 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/ 10; and
providing such other and further equitable relief as justice and equity may require.

| COUNT 11

VIOLATIONS OF THE CONSUMER FRAUD ACT

PURSUANT TO THE COLLECTION AGENCY ACT

The People reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations in Paragraphs 1 to 139.

~While engaged in trade or commerce, Defendants have committed unfair and/or

deceptive acts or practices declared unlawful under Section 2 of the Consumer Fraud Act (815




ILCS 505/2 et seq.) through violation of Section 9 of the Collection Agency Act (225 ILCS

425/9) by:

a.

threatening the seizure, attachment or sale of a debtor's property where such action
can only be taken pursuant to court order without disclosing that prior court .
proceedings are required, in violation of Section 9(a)(12) of the Collection Agency
Act;

initiating or threatening to initiate communication with a consumer's empldyer
without at least 5 days prior written notice, to the last known address of the debtor,
of the intention to commﬁnicate with the employer has been given to the employee
or express permission by law or court order, in violation of Section 9(a)(14) of the
Collection Agency Act;

using profane, obscene or abusive language in communicating with a consumer, his
or her family or others, in violation of Section 9(a)(16) of the Collection Agency
Act; |
disclosing or threatening to disclose information relating to a consumer's
indebtedness to any other person without a legitimate business need for the
information, in violation of Section 9(a)(17) of the Collection Agency Act;
attempting or threatening to enforce a right or remedy with knowledge or reason to
know that the right or remedy does not exist, in violation of Section 9(a)(20) of the
Collection Agency Act;

failing to disclose to the consumer or his or her family Defendants’ name, under
which they are engaging in debt collections and which Defendants are legally

authorized to use, in violation of Section 9(a)(21);
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g.

using any form of communication which simulates legal or judicial process or
which gives the appearance of being authorized, issued or approved by an attorney
at law when it is not, in violation of Section 9(a)(22) of the Collection Agency Act;
failing to disclose, at the time of making any demand for payment, t’he name of the
person to whom the claim is owed and at the request of the consumer, the address
where payment is to be made and the address of the person to whom the claim is
owed, in violation of Section 9(a)(25) of the Collection Agency Act;

representing that the debt collector is an attorney at law or an agent for an attorney
if he is not, in violation of Section 9(a)(28) of the Collection Agency Act; and
engaging in dishonorable, unethical, or unprofessional conduct of a character likely -
to deceive, defraud, or harm the pﬁblic, in violation of Sectidn 9(a)(31) of the

Collection Agency Act.

142. While engaged in trade or commerce, Defendants have committed unfair and/or

deceptive acts or practices declared unlawful under Section 2 of the Consumer Fraud Act (815

ILCS 505/2 et seq.) through violation of Section 9.1 of the Collection Agency Act (225 ILCS

425/9.1) by:

a.

communicating with any third party other than the debtor without identifying
himself or herself, without stating that he or she is confirming or correcting location
information concerning the debtor, in violation of Section 9.1(1);

communicating with any third party other than the debtor that the debtor owes a
debt, in violation of Section 9.1(2); and

communicating with any third party other than the debtor more than once without a

request to do so by that third party or without a reasonable belief that the earlier
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response of the third party is erroneous or incomplete and that the third party now
has correct or complete location information, in violation of Section 9.1(3).
143. While engaged in trade or commerce, Defendants have committed unfair and/or
deceptive acts or practices declared unlawful under Section 2 of the Consumer Fraud Act (815
ILCS 505/2 et seq.) through violation of Section 9.2 of the Collection Agency Act (225 ILCS
425/9.2) by:

a. communicating, in connection with the collection of any debt, with a consumer at
the consumer's place of employment with knowledge or with reason to know.that
the consumer's employer prohibits the debtor from receiving such communication
and without prior consent by the consumef or by a court of competent jurisdiction,
in violation of Section 9.2(a)(3); and

b. communicating, in connection with the ’collection of any debt, with any person
other than the debtor, the debtor's attorney, a consumer reporting agency if
otherwise permitted by law, th¢ creditor, the attorney of the creditor, or the attorney
of the collection agency without prior consent of the consumer directly given to
Defendants, without express permission of a court of competent jurisdiction, or
without reasonable necessity to effectuate a post judgment judicial remedy in
violation of Section 9.2(b).

144. While engaged in trade or commerce, Defendants have committed unfair and/or
decebtive acts or practices declared unlawful uﬁder Section 2 of the Consumer Fraud Act (815

ILCS 505/2 et seq.) through violation of Section 9.3 of the Collection Agency Act (225 ILCS

425/9.3) by failing to, within 5 days after the initial communication with a consumer in




connection with the collection of any debt,

following disclosures that was not contained in the initial communication:

145.

a. the amount of the debt;

b. the name of the creditor to whom the debt is owed;

c. that, unless the consumer, within 30 days after receipt of the notice, disputes the

validity of the debt, or any portion thereof, the debt will be assumed to be valid by

the debt collector or collection agency;

d. that, if the consumer notifies the debt collector or collection agency in writing
within the 30-day pe;iod that the debt, or any portion thereof, is disputed, the debt
‘collector or éol]ection agency will obtain verification of the debt or a copy of a
judgment against the debtor and a copy of the verification or judgment will be
mailed to the consumer by the debt collector or collection agency; and

e. that upon the consumer's written request within the 30-day period, the debt
collector or collection agency will provide the consumer with the name and

address of the original creditor, if different from the current creditor. If the

disclosures required under this subsection (a) are placed on the back of the notice,

the front of the notice shall contain a statement notifying debtors of that fact.

STATUTORY REMEDIES--COUNT II

Section 9.7 of the Illinois Collection Agency Act, 225 ILCS 425/9.7, provides:

§ 9.7. Enforcement under the Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act.

The Attorney General may enforce the knowing violation of Section 9 (except for items
(1) through (9) and (19) of subsection (a)), 9.1, 9.2, 9.3, or 9.4 of this Act as an unlawful

practice under the Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act.
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PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, the Plaintiff prays that this Honorable Court enter an Order:

A.

finding that Defendant engaged in debt collection as defined by Section 2 of the
Collection Agency Act;

finding that Defendants violated Sections 9, 9.1, 9.2, and 9.3 of the Collection Agency
Act, and thereby violated Section 2 of the Consumer Fraud Act;

permanently enjoining tﬁe Defendants from engaging in the business of debt collection as
defined in Section 2 of the Collection Agency Act;

permanently enjoining the Defendants from engaging in the deceptive and unfair acts and

practices alleged herein;

“declaring that all contracts entered into between the Defendants and Ilinois consumers by

the use of methods and practices are unlawful and rescinded and requiring that full
restitution be made to said consumers;

assessing a civil penalty of $50,000 if the Court finds the Defendants have engaged in
methods, acts or practices declared unlawful by the Act without the intent to defraud, if
the Court finds Defendants have engaged in methods, acts or practices declared unlawful
by the Act with the intent to defraud, then assessing a statutory civil penalty of $50,000,
all as provided in Section 7 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/7;

assessing an additional civil penalty in the amount of $10,000 per violation of the
Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act found by the Court to have been
committed by the Defendants against a person 65 years of age and older as provided in
Section 7(c) of the Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act, 815 ILCS

505/7(c); and
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146.

147.

147.

requiring the Defendants to pay all costs for the prosecution and investigation of this

action, as provided by Section 10 of the Consumer Fraud Act, 815 ILCS 505/10; and

Providing such other and further equitable relief as justice and equity may require.
COUNT 111

VIOLATIONS OF THE FAIR CREDIT REPORTING ACT

The People reallege and incorporate by reference the allegations in Paragraphs 1 to 145:
Defendants have engaged in practices declared unlawful under Section 1681b(f) of the
Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §1681b(f), by using and obtaining coﬁsumer credit
reports for an impermissible purpose by collecting on alleged or falsified debts that
Defendants had no authority to collect upon. |

REMEDIES
Section 1681s(c)(1) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §1681s(c)(1), provides:
(c) State action for violations

(1)  Authority of States.--In addition to such other remedies as are provided
under State law, if the chief law enforcement officer of a State, or an official or
agency designated by a State, has reason to believe that any person has violated or
is violating this subchapter, the State—

(A)  may bring an action to enjoin such violation in any appropriate
United States district court or in any other court of competent jurisdiction;
(B)  subject to paragraph (5), may bring an action on behalf of the
residents of the State to recover—

(i) damages for which the person is liable to such residents under
sections 1681n and 16810 of this title as a result of the violation;
(ii) in the case of a violation described in any of paragraphs (1)
through (3) of section 1681s-2 (c) of this title, damages for which
the person would, but for section 1681s-2 (c) of this title, be liable
to such residents as a result of the violation; or

(iii) damages of not more than $1,000 for each willful or negligent
violation; and
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(C) in the case of any successful action under subparagraph (A) or (B),
shall be awarded the costs of the action and reasonable attorney fees as
determined by the court. '

| PRAYER FQR RELIEF

WHEREFORE, Plaintiff }Srays that this Honorable Court enter an Order:

A. finding that Defendants have violated Section b(f) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15
U.S.C. § 1681b(f), by, but not limited to, the unlawful acts and practices alleged herein;

B. permanently enjoining Defendants from engaging in the impermissible use and obtaining of
consumer credit reports herein;

C. declaring that all contracts entered into between Defendants and Illinois consumers by the
use of methods and practices are unlawful and rescinded and requiring that full restitution be
made to said consumers;

D. requiring Defendants to pay $1,000 for each willful or negligent violation;

" E. requiring Defendants 'to pay all costs for the prosecution and investigation of this action; as

provided by Section 1681s(c)(1)(C) of the Fair Credit Reporting Act, 15 U.S.C. §1681

s(c)(1)(C); and

F. providing such other and further equitable relief as justice and equity may require.
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Attorney No. #99000

LISA MADIGAN
Illinois Attorney General

JAMES D. KOLE, Chief
Consumer Fraud Bureau

. JUNKO MINAMI

Assistant Attorney General
Consumer Fraud Bureau

100 W. Randolph St., 12 floor
Chicago, IL 60601
312/814-7130
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Respectfully Submitted,

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF |
ILLINOIS, by LISA MADIGAN,
ATTORNEY GENERAL OF ILLINOIS
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JAM\ES D'KOLE, Chief
Cons&r/nér Fraud Bureau

JL@(&(@AMI _
Assistant Attorney General

Consumer Fraud Bureau
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PN FINANCLAL S ASSULLATED
PO BON AT SKCET T JL 60076
PHONE 866- 3851440 FAX §47-6

January 7, 2010 :
Docket Number: 164038-CT-0142

Creditor: HHBANK
: Account:
J Medeir ' Judgment Amount: $992.43

** NOTICE OF JUDGMENT ™
Docket # 164038-CT-0142

R FINAL NOTICE OF JUDGMENT =~

Because you have refused to address this debt despite being given every opportunity 10 do so, be
adyiced that by tanpuary 20, 2010 if you have nat accented our terms and ronditions. we
will have exhausted all voluntary methods of resolution Our.intentions are o seek whatever legal
remedies are available Additionally, you are cautioned that unless this balance is paid, our office
will execute all interest, legal fees, and/or penalties allowable under the terms of the origina!

contract in accordance with the state laws in which you reside.

Y ou have been repeatedly advised of your long overdue balance in the amount of $992.43 Since
you have not made paymentwe have turned your account over to our attorneys and instructed
them to commence suit without further delay. However, there is still ime to avoid a judgment.
To avoid the additional burden of legal proceedings, you must resolve this matter by January 20,
2010. This will be your final opportunity 10 stop lien, levy, and/or garnishments and the expense
of court proceedings. Please be advised after January 20, 2010 the settiement offer will

be null and void, and the above judgment amount will be duein full.

We agree to accep! the final settlement amount of $595.46. in order to take advantage of this
offer you must have a check or credit card payment set up in our office by January 20,
2010 dated no fater than January 29, 2010. Upon clearance of your check or credit card

fy the major trades, where applicable, and provide you with a release letter

payment, we will not
If you have been summoned with 2

showing a z€ero balance on the above referenced account.
"Notice to appear "in regards 1o this claim, please disregard this notice.

Sincerely, , |
‘ |

John T. Suilivan, PC
Attorney at Law,
1-866-588-1440
Payment options.

. Credicard ( Visa, MasterCard, Discover, debit card with Visa of MasterCard 1090 )
. Check-by-phone
«  Money Gram nstructions- receive code 5297, Company name “pnfinancial”. PN Docket#.

. Mailing instructions: Make checks payable 10
PN Financial inc
Payment processing center-
PO Box 1431
Skokie, IL. 60076

I———
EXHIBIT







neiat [ng.
PO Bow 1431

Skeoxie, 1l 20076
Phore; 224-305-4330
Fax  B47-675-5038%

o P
September &

BBR of Chirage & Morthesn Blingis
230 N Wiakagh Ave Ste 2006

Chicago, IL €0611-7421
R

M1 Nicole Toohks

RE" Cass # 54232550 Russzil Clawen

yeen closed in
a1 condaona this

This ieitet is i1 response o a complaint for M. Russell Claxon, This account?
our office and we have cease communication with ki, Russell Claxgon. We Son
type of hehavior,

As the call was from an ex-employee from our compaay, he was reieasad on July 317 2009, We
wilf iy to @veid s in the future from ceourring. | would tike te apoiogize sinCerely iorany
inconvenencs s may have caused you We nave sent an apology letter o the consumer as
well, ;

fect frez (o confast me o my el shone @l (2245 205-4330

Hyou Rizve any quesions plesse fe

Sincerely,

Nelsarn IMaowan Presadent P Fmancial Ing.

EXHIBIT
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